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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members
Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sai
Silks (Kalamandir) Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”),
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
Standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its
profit, other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAP’s' Code- of Ethics. We
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believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our

financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,
were of most significance in our audit of the
of the current period. These matters were

audit opinion on the standalone

in our professional judgment,
standalone financial statements
addressed in the context of our

audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon,

Y sy AnditMat audit
1 Inventories valuation and Our procedures included, but wa
existence: not limited to the following:
(Refer Note 2(0) and 8 to the | Obtained a detailed understanding
standalone financial | and evaluated the design and
statements) implementation of controls that the

The Company has Inventories
of Rs. 4764.32 Millions as at
March 31, 2022 as detailed in

Notes 8 to the standalone
financial statements.
Inventories valuation and

existence has been determined
to be a key audit matter as
inventories may be held for
long periods of time before
being sold making it vulnerable
to obsolescence. This could
result in an overstatement of
the value of the inventories if
the cost is higher than the net
realisable value. Furthermore,
the assessment and application
of inventories provisions are
subject to significant
management judgment.

Company has established in relation
to inventory valuation and existence.
* Observed the physical verification
of inventories count at the financial
year end and assessed the adequacy
of controls over the existence of
inventories.

* Obtained assurance over
appropriateness of management’s
assumptions applied in calculating
the gross profit margin  and
discounts to be deducted from sales
price to arrive at cost of goods.

* Evaluated management judgment
with regards to the application of
provisions to the inventories.

the

Our Conclusion;

Based on the above procedures, we
did not identify any significant
deviation to the assessment made by
management in respect of
inventories valuation and existence. |
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance Report, and Shareholder Information, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
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controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we
report that;

a)

b)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the
purposes of our audit have been received from the branches not
visited by us.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Standalone
Statement of changes in equity and the Standalone Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account and with the returns received from the branches
not visited by us.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.
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)

g)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure -A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s

report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in its Standalone Financial
Statements — Refer Note 37 to the financial statements

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

i. The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

* Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or
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ii.

iii.

* Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall:

* Directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

* Provide any guarantee, security or the like form or on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures as considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d){i)
contain any material mis-statement.

€. According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not declared or paid any Dividend during
the year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

For Sagar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 0035108

CA. B.\Arina
Partner

Membership No.216454
UDIN: 22216454ALPYAU3090

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 28.05.2022
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“Annexure - A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Sai Silks
(Kalamandir) Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31st 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over F inancial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Sagar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 0035108

69/—4 LUUAER )

CA. B. Aruna
Partner
Membership No.216454
UDIN: 22216454ALPYAU3090

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 28.05.2022
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“Annexure — B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Sai Silks
(Kalamandir) Limited of even date)

i. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of Intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and equipment by which all the Property, Plant and
equipment are physically verified by the management. In our
opinion the periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of fixed
assets. In accordance with this program, certain Property, Plant
and equipment were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the company, title
deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there
are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
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(i)

(i)

(a)

(b)

(@)

(A)

(B)

The inventory has been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the company,
the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
€xcess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis
of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are
in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company do not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates. Accordingly, no balance outstanding as on 3]st
March 2022.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not provided any advances in the nature of
loans or security to any other entity during the year.
Accordingly, no balance outstanding as on 31st March 2022.

Accordingly, clause 3(iii) (b) to (f) of the order is not applicable.

Cont..14



(iv)

(v)

(vii)

()

14:

According to the information and explanation given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has
not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as
specified under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security as
specified under section 186 of the Company has compiled with
the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
relation to loans given and investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which
are deemed to be deposits form the public. Accordingly, clause
3(v) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and expiations given to us, Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
products traded/dealt by it (and or services provided by it).
Accordingly, provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of sales tax.
Service tax, Duty of excise and value added tax during the year
since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on
the basis of our examination of the records the Company,
amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of accounts in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax
(‘GST’), provident fund Employees State Insurance, Income- tax,
Duty of customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, provident fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income- tax, Duty of customs, Cess
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31
March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable.
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(viii)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

According to the information and explanation given to us, there
are no dues of GST, provident fund, employees State Insurance,
Income- tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value
added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited by the Company on accounts of disputes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the
Tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (a) of the order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank of financial institution or government of government
authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that funds have been raised on short- term
basis, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term
purposes by the Company.
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(xi)

(

(a)

(b)

(2)

(b)

()

:16:

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation
of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, Clause 3(ix) () of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, Clause 3(ix) (f) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
Accordingly, Clause 3(x) (a) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares of fully of partly convertible debentures
during the year Accordingly, Clause 3(x) (b) of the order is not
applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company
and according to the information and explanations given to us,
considering the principles of materiality outlined in standards on
auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the
audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT -4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the central Government,

We have taken in to Consideration the whistle blower complains
received by the Company during the year while determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)  (a)
(b)

(xv)

(xvi) ()
(b)
()

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company, Accordingly, Clause 3(xii) of
the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financials
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our
audit procedures, in our opinion, the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the company
issued till date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given us, the Company has not entered in to any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, Clause
3(xvi) (a) of the order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, Clause
3(xvi) (b) of the order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, Clause 3(xvi) (c) of the order is not applicable.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(d)

According to the information and explanations provided to us
during the course of audit, the Group does not have any CIC,
accordingly, the requirements of Clause 3(xvi) (d) are not
applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the
year and we have taken into consideration the issues, objections
or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payments of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the Balance sheet date. We however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

Cont..19
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(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 pursuant

to any project. Accordingly, Clause 3(xx) (a) and 3(xx) (b) of the
order is not applicable.

For Sagar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 0035108

;% P

CA. B. Aruna

Partner

Membership No.216454
UDIN: 22216454ALPYAU3090

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 28.05.2022



Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Standalone Financial Statements
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

P tculae Note As at As at As at As at
No. Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,631.71 1,587.25 1,717.92 1,379.66
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 - 21.19 - -
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 76.10 97.59 119.38 141.62
(d) Right-of-use assets 5(a) 784.05 566.79 674.74 -
(e) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 238.02 233.91 224.24 188.37
(f)  Other non-current assets 7 87.45 54.15 39.24 39.11
2,817.33 2,560.89 2,775.52 | 1,748.76
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 4,764.32 3,669.68 3,715.14 3,411.05
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 86.24 43.34 180.90 250.03
(i)  Bank balances other than (iii) above 11 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
(iv) Loans 12 162.02 55.03 44.96 29.39
(v) Other financial assets 13 3.26 1.12 0.16 3.46
(c) Other current assets 14 188.79 116.02 146.74 175.76
5,607.54 4,093.35 4,152.09 _3,914.13
Total Assets 8,424.87 6,654.24 6,927.61 5,662.89
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 240.65 240.65 234.55 234.55
(b) Other equity 16 2,765.96 2,189.26 2,080.51 1,659.37
3,006.61 2,429.90 2,315.05 1,893.92
2 Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 486.60 573.56 345.84 403.61
(i) Lease liabilities 5(b) 690.48 466.97 556.28 &
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
(b) Provisions 19 25.22 29.99 29.88 26.62
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 20 127.71 145,37 142.42 151.94
1,341.16 1,221.41 1,079.47 583.48
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(iy Borrowings 21 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34
(i) Lease liabilities 5(c) 175.91 153.65 124.17 .
(ii) Trade payables 22
-Due to micro, small and medium - - - -
-Others 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
(iv) _Other financial liabilities 23 253.07 125.59 332.31 272.23
(b) Other current liabilities 24 24.26 29.57 25.75 20.28
(c) Provisions 25 2.49 1.89 1.77 1.46
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 26 211.90 17.56 47.34 159.22
_ o 4,077.10 3,002.93 3,533.09 3,185.49
Total equity and liabilities 8,424.87 6,654.24 6,927.61 5,662.89

Corporate information and significant

accounting policies 1 & 2

The accompanying notes are an integral

rt of the financial statements

As per our audit repert.of even date

For SAGAR (}3’5‘5 :
Chartered n@

For and on behalf of the board

'- g ChXN-ACD.Prasad Z k’f,_,fh “~Annam Kalyan Srinivas
Managing Director // < ZWhole Time Director

CA. B. Arund DI 01929166 :“( o IN : 02428313

Partner < =

Membership No. 216454 s

F. No. 0035105 A S71 s S

Place: Hyderabad KVLN Sarma ___;/M K Bhaskara Teja

Date: 28th May, 2022

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)
e L Note | Yearended | Yearended | Year ended
Fartculars No. | Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020
INCOME
I |Revenue from operations 27 11,293.23 6,772.48 11,755.60
II |Other income 28 36.93 18.47 30.57
111 Total Income (I+II) 11,330.16 6,790.95 11,786.17
IV |EXPENSES
(a) Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 8,472.12 4,451.60 8,734.62
(b) Changes in inventories 30 (1,093.42) 16.83 (274.01)
(c) Employee benefit expense 31 1,027.51 865.82 1,068.58
(d) Finance costs 32 286.39 274.43 273.63
(e) Depreciation and amortization expense 33 308.16 294.57 260.29
(f) Impairment loss (refer note 3(iv)) 3 50.94 - -
(g) Other expenses 34 1,505.60 814.61 1,189.29
Total expenses (IV) 10,557.30 6,717.87 11,252.40
V |Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-1V) 772.86 73.07 533.77
VI |Exceptional Items - -
VII |Profit before tax (V-VI) 772.86 73.07 533.77
VIII |Tax expense: 195.99 21.76 112.81
(a) Current Tax 213.26 19.65 122.39
(b) Deferred Tax 20 (17.61) 2.10 (9.58)
(c) Short/ (Excess) provision of earlier years 0.34 0.01 -
1x |Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 576.87 51.31 420.96
X |Other Comprehensive Income
A) Ttems that will not be redassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.22) 3.39 0.23
b) Income tax relating to Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 20 s (0:85) (.08
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.16) 2.53 0.17
XI |Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) 576.71 53.85 421.14
XII |Earnings per equity share 35
(a) Basic earnings per share of ¥ 2/- each 4,79 0.43 3.59
(b) Diluted earnings per share of ¥ 2/- each 4.79 0.43 3.59

The accompanying notes are an integral pat of the financial statements

As per our audit report of even date For and on behalf of the board

il
Al lyan Srinivas

C .Prasad
Managing Director - Whole Time Director
DIN : 01929166 ?Tr"'-‘-~-. DIN : 02428313

Membership No. 216454
F. No. 003510S

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 28th May, 2022




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Statement of cash flows as at year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

L) Year ended Year ended Year ended
RIS Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar 31,2020
A) Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax and exceptional items 772.86 73.07 533.77
Adjustments for :
Amortisation of Right to use asset 117.60 107.95 102.39
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (net) 71.12 59.60 60.81
Actuarial gain / loss (0.22) 3.39 0.23
Preliminary Expenditure Written Off - = 0.30
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 169.07 164.81 135.67
Impairment loss on windmill (refer note 3(iv)) 61.07 - -
Amortisation on intangible assets 21.49 21.81 22.24
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 0.33 (0.53) 1.49
(Profit)/ Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.17) 0.09 0.16
Other Income (21.61) (9.98) (20.97)
Interest expense 274.44 268.39 269.28
Interest income (9.93) (3.84) (5.61)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,456.05 684.75 1,099.74
Adjustments for working capital changes in :
Inventories (1,094.64) 45.47 (304.09)
Trade Receivables 3.64 (5.79) 6.89
Other current financial and non financial asset (181.90) 19.70 16.74
Trade payables 215.19 (624.63) 280.67
Other current liabilities (5.30) 3.81 5.47
Other financial liabilities 124.72 (206.72) 51.14
Other financial and non-financial non-current assets (43.98) (19.85) (76.97)
Long-term provisions (4.78) 0.11 3.26
Other non-current financial liabilities 5.63 0.46 3.74
Short term provisions 0.61 0.12 0.31
Cash generated from operations 475.23 (102.55) 1,086.90
Income tax paid (19.26) (49.44) (234.27)
Net Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 455.98 (152.00) 852.63
B) Cash flows from Investing Activities
Salg/ (Purchase) of Property, Plant and Equipment/CWIP (incl. (253.21) (55.44) (474.09)
capital advances)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Deposits (198.39) (138.20) (26.62)
Interest income 9.93 3.84 5.61
Other income 21.61 9.98 20.97
Net Cash generated from/(used in) Investing Activities (420.06) (179.82) (474.12)
C) Cash flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital/ Share Application Money - 61.00 -
Proceeds/ (repayment) from or of Long-term borrowings (86.96) 227.72 (57.78)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Short-term borrowings 519.60 297.57 (11.22)
Prinicpal payment of lease liability (153.65) (124.17) (116.80)
Interest paid and effect of foreign exchange (272.01) (267.86) (261.84)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 6.98 194.26 (447.64)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 42.89 (137.55) (69.13)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 43.34 180.90 250.03
:‘:::: :3;:! Cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer 86.24 43.34 180.90

The accompanylng notes are an integral par} of the financial statements
: aort of even date

Ch. .Prasad ===
Managing Director f//\,f__p
DIN : 01929166

Membership No. 216454
F. No. 003510S

Place: Hyderabad

Date; 28th May, 2022

VLNSarma P
Chief Financial Officer =

For and on behalf of the board

AnMIyan Srinivas

. - Whole Time Director
DIN : 02428313

"M K Bhaskara Teja

Company Secretary




Statement of changes in equity

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars

Notes

Amount

As at 01st Apr, 2019

Changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors

Restated balance as at April 01, 2019
Changes in equity share capital during the
year

Balance as at April 01, 2020

Changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors

Restated balance as at April 01, 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the
year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors

Restated balance as at April 01, 2021
Changes in equity share capital during the
year

Balance as at March 31, 2022

15

15

15

15

234.55

234.55

6.10
240.65

240.65

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

b. Other equity

- Particulars

Notes

Reserves and surplus

Securities
premium

Retained
Earnings

As at 01st Apr, 2019

Profit for the year (Net)

Issue of equity shares

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at April 01, 2020

Profit for the year (Net)

Issue of equity shares

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Profit for the year (Net)

Issue of equity shares

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

16

16

16

16

Total Equity

1,370.71

1,659.37

288.66

420.96

0.17

420.96

0.17

288.66

1,791.85

2,080.51

54.90

51.31

2.53

51.31
54.90
2.53

343.56

1,845.69

2,189.26

576.87

(0.16)

576.87

(0.16)

343.56

2,422.41

2,765.97

inancial statements

For and on behalf of the board

v

Antiam Kalyan Srinivas
. .Whole Time Director
) DIN : 02428313

.D.Prasad e
Managlng Director AJ Ra/s
DIN : 01929166//9\(

Membership No. 216454 W
F. No. 003510S \
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 28th May, 2022

~ M K Bhaskara Teja

Chief Financial Officer =~ Company Secretary




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

Note 1: Corporate information

M/s Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited ("The Company") is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 in
Hyderabad on 03-Jul-2008 having the CIN U52190TG2008PLC059968. The Company is engaged in the business
of buying and selling of textile and textile articles as a Retailer in the name and style of "Kalamandir”,

"Varamahalakshmi", "Mandir" and "KLM Fashions" in the state of Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka and
Tamil Nadu.

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis for preparation

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015]
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

 certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration is
measured at fair value

« assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell

« defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

« share-based payments.

(b) Statement of Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS's)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notified roadmap to implement Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS')
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules issued from time to time. As per applicable rules, the Company would
be required to apply Ind AS from financial year beginning 2022-23. However, since the company is in the process
of listing, in order to present the financials in line with applicable SEBI Regulations, the Company opted for
voluntary adoption of Ind AS from the financial year beginning April 1, 2021 with comparitive information for FY
2020-21 and FY 2019-20 by adopting transition date as April 1,2019. Accordingly, the financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read together with (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous Indian GAAP'). These financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS (Refer Note 51 for
Information on how the company has adopted Ind AS);




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(c)

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are
based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statement.
The actual outcome may diverge from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
re-assessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities and investments:

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities on fair value basis at each balance sheet date or at
the time they are assessed for impairment. Fair value measurement that are based on significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) requires estimates of operating margin, discount rate, future growth rate, terminal values, etc.
based on management’s best estimate about future developments.

(iii) Provisions and contingent liabilities :

Provisions: A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties -surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of time value of money is material).
Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes to accounts.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statement
are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

(e) Revenue Recognition

a) Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control over the goods
sold is transferred to the customer. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, net of discounts, variable considerations, other similar charges, as specified in the contract with

the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to
governmental authorities.

b) Interest income: Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset of that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. P

S
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¢) Service Income - Service income is regbjynized on rgr_]’drrl,ag of services based on/tfi

arrangements with the concerned parties.

e

q




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

)

Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes consist of leases for buildings. The Company, at the inception of a contract,
assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been
applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after April 1, 2019 (standard effective date). The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the later of lease commencement date or April 01, 2019.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is premeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is premeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

(9) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on transactions designated as fair value hedge, if any.

(h) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

m
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Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(M

Employee benefits

Leave Encashment : Compensatory absence which accrue to the employees which are expected to be availed or
encashed within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are

short-term in nature. These compensatory absences require measurement on an actual basis and not on
actuarial basis.

Defined contribution plan : The company makes defined contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State
Insurance which are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

Defined benefit plan : The company’s liability towards gratuity is determined on the basis of year end actuarial
valuations applying the Projected Unit Credit Method done by an independent actuary as on the Balance sheet
date.

The actuarial valuation method used by the independent actuary for measuring the liability is the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial losses and gains are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and are not
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in any subsequent periods. Changes in the present value of the

defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the
statement of profit and loss as past service costs.

(j) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
a) Current tax: Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) : paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when
it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

c) Deferred tax: Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statement and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities and
assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(k) Property, Plant and Equipment

M

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes,

are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, Freehold land is carried at
historical cost.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the
tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other
incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and
equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and
equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase in the
future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land) has been provided on the straight-line
method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except in the case of fixutes
at stores, has been provided based on the lease period of the respective premises.. The estimated useful life of
the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of the each financial year and the depreciation
period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Any leasehold improvements is depreciated over the lease term.

Investment Property

Investment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's
requirements for cost model. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised. The depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land) has been provided
on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013,




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(m’ Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight line basis, from the date that they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of
the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset. Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets is 6 years which
contains Software. The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at
the end of the each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

(n) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

(o) Inventories

Inventories (including stock-in-transit) are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on
‘Weighted Average’ basis. Due to a large number and diverse nature of inventory items, cost is estimated as near
as possible for each stock keeping unit including freight and applicable taxes, etc.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

No valuation is done for damaged stock since its realizable value, if any, is negligible.




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(p) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions: A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of time value of money is material).
Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes to accounts,

(q) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

a) Non-derivative Financial assets: All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

1) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is that which exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income” line item.

b) Derecognition of financial assets: A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company:

- has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. When the entity has transferred an asset, the
Company evaluates whether it has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecogmsed if the Company has not retal

recognlsed to the extent of continuing mvolvemx\n the financial a
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Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

¢) Foreign exchange gains and losses: The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For
foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

d) Financial liabilities: All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL - Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in

statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other
income/Other expenses’ line item.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of
the instruments and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is

accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

(r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Managing director.

The Company is reported at an overall level, and hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS
108.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition) and highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Significant Accounting policies

(t) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares
and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

(u) Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

(v) Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress includes, cost of assets not yet commissioned, and incidental expenses during the
construction period. Certain directly attributable pre-operative expenses during construction period are included
under Capital Work in Progress. These expenses are allocated to the cost of Fixed Assets when the same are
ready for intended use.
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Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Note No. 4
Other Intangible assets
Description of Asset Software Brands Total
Deemed Cost
As at 1 Apr, 2019 6.78 157.07 163.85
Additions - " =
Disposals/adjustments = “ =
Closing Gross Carrying Amount (C) 6.78 157.07 163.85
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation 1.36 20.88 22.23
Depreciation charge for the year 1.30 20.94 22.24
Disposals/adjustments/Impairment - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment
as at Mar 31, 2020 (D) S e i
Net Carrying Amount as at Mar 31, 2020 (C-D) 4.13 115.25 119.38
Gross Carrying Amount
As at 1 Apr, 2020 6.78 157.07 163.85
Additions 0.02 - 0.02
Disposals/adjustments - - o
Closing Gross Carrying Amount (A) 6.80 157.07 163.87
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation 2.66 41.81 44.47
Depreciation charge for the year 0.93 20.88 21.81
Disposals/adjustments/Impairment - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation and Impairment
as at Mar 31, 2021 (B) 438 il i
Net Carrying Amount as at Mar 31, 2021 (A-B) 3.21 94.38 97.59
Description of Asset Software ‘Brands Total
"Gross Carrying Amount
As at 1 Apr, 2021 6.80 157.07 163.87
Additions - - -
Disposals/adjustments - - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount (C) 6.80 157.07 163.87
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation 3.59 62.69 66.28
Depreciation charge for the year 0.61 20.88 21.49
Disposals/adjustments/Impairment - - =
Closing Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment 4.20 83.57
as at Mar 31, 2022 (D) i .
Net Carrying Amount as at Mar 31, 2022 (C-D) 2.60 73.50




Notes to financial information

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 5(a)
Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application
being 01-Apr-2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 — Leases and related interpretation
and guidance. The Company has used simplified transition approach under Ind AS

116,

(c)

(a) Right-of-use assets
: : As at As at As at As at
rticul : : :
Fartcyiars Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31,2020 | Apro01, 2019
Opening Balance 566.79 674.74 - -
Add: Transition to Ind AS 116 - - 613.74 -
Add: Addition during the year 334.86 = 163.39 -
Less: Impact on lease termination - = - -
Less: Impact on lease modification - - & -
Less: Amortised during the year (117.60) (107.95) (102.39) &
Total 784.05 566.79 674.74 =
(b) Lease liabilities
The following are the movement in lease liabilities
- g As at As at As at As at
: Farticdlars Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31,2020 | Apr01, 2019
Opening Balance 620.62 680.46 - -
Additions 323.08 - 732.31 -
Deletions - - - -
Interest 76.34 64.34 64.95 -
Lease payments (153.65) (124.17) (116.80) =
Closing balance 866.39 620.62 680.46 -
Non-current lease liabilities 690.48 466.97 556.28 -
Current lease liabilities
' T As at As at As at As at _
forticylars Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31,2020 | Apro01, 2019
Current lease liabilities 175.91 153.65 124.17
Total 175.91 153.65 124.17




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 6 Other financial assets

As at As at As at As at

Barticdiars Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019

a) Rental deposits - at amortised cost - refer note (1
(be)low P L) 238.02 233.91 224.24 188.37

Total 238.02 233.91 224.24 188.37

(1) The company has paid an amount of INR 30.00 million as interest free refundable security deposit for opening a new store
at Chennai on lease. However, the parties failed to hand over the physical possession. Complaint was filed with Central Crime
Station (CCS), Hyderabad PS vide FIR No. 219/2019. Upon investigation, charge sheet was filed and requested the bank to
freeze the account of the defaulting party, where significant amount was parked. Management is confident of recovering the
total deposit amount. Hence no provision has been made in this regard.

Note No. 7 Other non-current assets

Paticalars As at As at As at Asat
Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
(a) Advances for purchase of property, plant and equif 66.35 34.18 19.28 25.01
(b) Deposits with govt. authorities 20.84 19.71 19.71 13.56
(c) Other deposits 0.26 0.26 0.25 0.55
Total 87.45 54.15 39.24 39.11

Note No. 8 Inventories
g As at As at As at As at

gibarticulars Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
(a) Stock in trade 4,761.65 3,668.23 3,685.06 3,411.05

(b) Packing material and others 2.67 1.45 30.08 -
Total 4,764.32 3,669.68 3,715.14 3,411.05

Inventories are hypothecated as security against current borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in Note 41.
For mode of valuation of inventories refer Note 2(0) of Accounting Policies.

Note No. 9 Trade receivables

b Carian s As at As at As at As at
. Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Considered good - Unsecured 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
Total 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66

Trade receivables are hypothecated as Security for part of Cash Credit facilities (refer note 41) and ageing of trade
receivables is provided in Note 38.

receivables is insignificant. The concentration of credit risk is-alsy.li
unrelated. fr >
J



Notes to financial information

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 10 Cash and cash equivalents

: As at As at As at As at
EScar Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
(a) Balance with banks
-In Current Accounts 3.38 17.30 101.87 70.99
-In Deposit Accounts & - = 102.75
(b) Cash on hand 63.20 14,28 78.87 40.63
(c) Others - Credit card receivables 19.65 11.76 0.15 35.66
Total 86.24 43.34 180.90 250.03
Note No. 11 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
24 As at As at As at As at
Earticulas Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Fixed deposits held as margin nﬁoney against
borrowings and guarantees (maturity of less than 12 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
months from the balance sheet date)~
Total 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
~ Other bank deposits represents, fixed deposit with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months.
Note No. 12 Loans
L As at As at As at As at
AR Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Employee loans - at amortised cost ‘ 162.02 55.03 44.96 29.39
Total 162.02 55.03 44.96 29.39
Break-up of security details
Loans considered good — unsecured 162.02 55.03 44,96 29.39
Note No. 13 Other financial assets
: : As at As at As at As at
Fartiotia: s Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Other receivables - = - 3.46
Interest accrued on FDs 3.26 1.12 0.16 -
Total 3.26 1.12 0.16 3.46
Note No. 14 Other current assets
i As at As at As at As at
. Rarficulars Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
(a) Balances with statutory authorities
- Other taxes 64.98 74.45 106.78 120.46
(b) Others
- Advance for Suppliers 110.62 28.09 29.74 45.18
- Prepaid Expenses 13.19 13.49 10.22 10.12
Total 116.02
I s




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 15
Equity share capital

(i) Authorised equity share capital

Particulars L Amount
Shares
As at 01st Apr, 2019 4,20,00,000 420.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31st Mar, 2020 4,20,00,000 420.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31st Mar, 2021 4,20,00,000 420.00
Movement during the year - -
As at 31st Mar, 2022 4,20,00,000 420.00
(ii) Movement in paid-up equity share capital

Particulars “;:‘gb;;c'f Amount
As at 1st Apr, 2019 2,34,54,588 234.55
Movement during the year - -
As at 31st Mar, 2020 2,34,54,588 234.55
Movement during the year 6,10,000 6.10
As at 31st Mar, 2021 2,40,64,588 240.65
Movement during the year - -
As at 31st Mar, 2022 2,40,64,588 240.65

Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has one dass of equity shares having a par value of INR.10/- each (Previous Years: INR.10/- each). Each
shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
For the year(s) ended March 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Name of tﬁe Shareholder

March 31, 2021 and 2022

March 31, 2020

Number of shares| % holding "‘;:‘:f;;f | 9% holding
Chalavadi Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad 71,07,600 29.54 ~ 64,97,600 27.70
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani 53,60,088 22.27 53,60,088 22.85
Perumalla Dhanalakshmi 29,31,900 12.18 29,31,900 12.50
Chalavadi Devamani 22,24,200 9.24 22,24,200 9.48
Chalavadi D K Durga Rao 16,16,500 6.72 16,16,500 6.89
Annam Kalyan Srinivas 15,15,400 6.30 15,15,400 6.46
Chalavadi Rupamani N K D S Harshada 25,00,000 10.39 25,00,000 10.66
April 01, 2019

Name of the Shareholde! :

j ! Number of shares % holding
Chalavadi Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad 63,62,600 27.13
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani 54,95,088 23.43
Perumalla Dhanalakshmi 29,31,900 12.50
Chalavadi Devamani 22,24,200 9.48 "7
Chalavadi D K Durga Rao 16,16,500 6.89 v
Annam Kalyan Srinivas 15,15,400 6.46 M
Rupamani Nagakanakadurgasri Harshada 25,00,000 10.66 i

Chalavadi

| HYDERABAD




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

(iv) Shares held by promoters
March 31, 2022 - Shareholding of promoters has not changed since March 31, 2021

; : March 31, 2021
Name of the Promoter . . 0
' Number of shares %o holding - /° Sangs
: : during the year
Chalavadi Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad 71,07,600 29.54 1.83
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani 53,60,088 22.27 (0.58)
March 31, 2020
Name of the Pi oter 0,
b Selot Number of shares %o holding / {o Ghange
- _ during the year
Chalavadi Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad 64,97,600 27.70 0.58
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani 53,60,088 22.85 (0.58)
g . April 01, 2019
Name of the Promoter % Ch
L , Number of shares % holding /° Change
: during the year
Chalavadi Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad 63,62,600 27.13 3.66
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani 54,95,088 23.43 (3.55)

(v) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up for consideration otherthan cash, bonus shares
and shares bought back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date:

Share capital as at March 31, 2022 includes, 20,64,588 equity shares of INR 10/- each allotted during the financial year
2015-16 at Premium of Rs. 90/-each for consideration other than cash, to the Share Holders of I-One Investments Pvt. Ltd.,

in the scheme of Amalgamation as per the order of the Hon'ble High Court of Hyderabad,Telangana Dated 18-Aug-2016.
(Appointed Date 01.10.2015).

; Name of the Allottee No. of equity
shares
Chalavadi Jhansi Rani : 20,63,388
Annam Subash Chandra Mohan 1,200
20,64,588




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 16 Other equity

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Particulars As at As at As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
(a) Securities premium (refer movement
below) 343.56 343.56 288.66 288.66
(b) Retained Earnings including OCI (refer
movement below) 2,422.40 1,845.69 1,791.85 1,370.71
2,765.96 2,189.26 2,080.51 1,659.37
(a) Securities premium
Particulars As at As at As at As at
: Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
Opening Balance 343.56 288.66 288.66 284.16
Additions = 54.90 - 4.50
Closing Balance 343.56 343.56 288.66 288.66
(b) Retained Earnings
i : As at As at As at As at
Farficulars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro01,2019
Opening Balance 1,845.69 1,791.85 1,370.71 1,067.46
Net profit for the year 576.87 51.31 420.96 303.27
2,422.56 1,843.16 1,791.67 1,370.73
OCI on Gratuity and Leave Encashment (0.22) 3.39 0.23 (0.03)
Deferred Tax on OCI portion 0.06 (0.85) __(0.06) 0.01
Closing balance 2,422.40 1,845.69 1,791.85 1,370.71
Note No. 17 Financial liabilities non-current borrowings
Particulars As at i As at As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
Secured - Long Term Loans from banks
(a) Term loans from banks * 454.90 542.88 31177 391.49
(b) Vehicle loans from banks # 31.70 30.68 34.06 12.12
Total 486.60 573.56 345.84 403.61

* Term Loans from Banks are secured by first charge on fixed assets of the company both present and future (For details

Refer Note No 41)

# Vehicles loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles financed by respective banks. (For details Refer Note No 41)
Note No. 18 Non-current other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at As at
: Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
(a) Security deposits - at amortised cost 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
Total 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
Note No. 19 Provisions
Particulars As at As at As at As at
' I | - Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
a) Provision for employee benefits (refer
51 D)t . f_%)' Bloyee henetits 25.22 19.86 18.74
(b) Windmill revenue compensation i L S .10.13 11.14
Total 25.22/|%/ 29.99 29.88




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 20 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2022

As at
Mar 31, 2021

As at
Mar 31, 2020

As at
Apr 01, 2019

The balance comprises temporary
differences attributable to:
Deferred tax liabilities - Opening

145.37 142.42 151.94 125.19
Impact in the current year (17.66) 2.95 (9.52) 26.75
Total 127.71 145.37 142.42 151.94
As at Mar 31, 2022
) : Ve Recognised in | Recognised in i
Particulars Opening balance T ocI Closing balani
Property, plant and equipment 147.93 (16.15) - 131.78
Other Adjustments (2.56) (1.44) (0.06) (4.07)
Total 145.37 (17.60) (0.06) 127.71
As at Mar 31, 2021
! 5 Opening balance | Recognised in | Recognisedin | .. .
arieuars April 01,2020 | profit or loss ocI Hosingbalance
Property, plant and equipment 144.66 3.27 = 147.93
Other temporary differences (2.25) (1.16) 0.85 (2.56)
Total 142.42 2.10 0.85 145.37
As at Mar 31, 2020
: Opening balance | Recognised in | Recognised in A
: Particulars April 01, 2019 profit or loss OCI Closingibalance
Property, plant and equipment 154.55 (9.89) = 144.66
Other temporary differences _(2.61) 0.31 0.06 (2.25)
Total 151.94 (9.58) 0.06 142.42
Note No. 21 Financial liabilities current borrowings
P bcdlats .~ Asat As at As at As at
: Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
(a) Secured
(i) Loans repayable on demand from 1907.91
banks (refer note 41) ,907. 1,393.76 1,158.46 1,157.29
(ii) Current maturities for long term debt 198.79 192.27 106.94 121.64
(i) Current maturities of vehicle loans 11.59 10.77 13.83 11.52
(b) Unsecured
(i) From related parties - 1.89 21.89 21.89
Total 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 22 Trade payables

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

; As at As at As at As at
Gachculars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro01,2019
Trade Payables to third parties
- Due to micro, small and medium enterp = = = i
- Others 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
Total 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95

*Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at year end

(b) Interest due on above and remaining
unpaid as at year end

(c) Principal/interest amount paid beyond
the appointed day during the year

(d) Interest paid on payments made beyond
the appointed day during the year u/s 16 of
MSMED Act, 2006

(e) Interest due and Payable on payments
made beyond the appointed day during the
year other than MSMED Act, 2006

(f) Interest remaining due and payable for
the period of delay in earlier years

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note No. 23 Other financial liabilities

= As at As at As at As at
I Mar31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro01,2019
(a) Interest accrued on loans 2.76 - 8.93 -
(b) Employee benefits payable 88.01 61.87 58.10 -
(c) Capital Creditors 34.39 11.36 20.67 -
(d) Outstanding expenses 127.92 52.36 244.61 272,23
Total 253.07 125.59 332.31 272.23
Note No. 24 Other current liabilities
' : As at As at As at As at
fhamticuars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apr0i,2019
(a) Statutory dues payable 12.73 13.42 11.37 8.44
(b) Advances received from customers 11.53 16.15 14.39 11.84
Total 24.26 29.57 25.75 20.28
Note No. 25 Provisions
i As at As at As at As at
- R Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apr01,2019
(a) Provision for employee benefits (refer
note 43) 2.49 1.89 1.77 1.46
Total 2.49 1.89 1.77 1.46
Note No. 26 Current tax liabilities (Net)
e As at As at As at
Raineuiars Mar 31,2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31,2020 1
(a) Current tax liabilities 211 90 = 17 56 47/%1#‘
Ad
Total 211‘90 {l\: : 1 17 56 4ﬂ 9{&,
: T
3 ‘\é‘}
VT o0 P



Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 27 Revenue from operations

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

; Year ended Year ended Year ended
ponctiars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar 31,2020
(a) Sale of products
- through showrooms 11,121.67 6,716.55 11,754.60
- through online channel 171.55 54.92 -
(b) Other operating revenues
- windmill revenue compensation - 1.01 1.01
Total 11,293.23 6,772.48 11,755.60

Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", Refer note 2(e) for the accounting policies
followed pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115. The adoption of Ind AS 115 did not have any material impact.

Note No. 28 Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
Y i Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31, 2020
(a) Interest Income
- on fixed deposits 9.93 3.84 5.61
(b) Profit / Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.17 (0.09) (0.16)
(c) Interest unwinding on rental deposits 5.21 4,74 4.14
(d) Other non-operating income 21.61 9.98 20.97
Total 36.93 18.47 30.57
Note No. 29 Purchases of stock-in-trade
: . . Year ended Year ended . Year ended
Particulars Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Purchases of Stock in trade 8,472.12 4,451.60 8,734.62
Total 8,472.12 4,451.60 8,734.62
Note No. 30 Changes in inventories
R Patticilars Year ended Year ended Year ended
. Bahes . Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Changes in inventories
Stock at the end of the year
Stock in trade 4,761.65 3,668.23 3,685.06
Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock in trade 3,668.23 3,685.06 3,411.05
Total changes in inventories (1,093.42) 16.83 (274.01)




Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 31 Employee benefit expense

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

L Year ended Year ended Year ended
Farticulars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar 31,2020
(a) Salaries and Wages (refer note 43) 915.58 796.11 958.21
(b) Director's remuneration 38.46 16.18 21.78
(c) Staff Bonus 37.54 27.27 39.91
(d) Staff Welfare Expenses 24.16 17.37 36.53
(e) Contribution to Provident Fund & ESI (refer note 43) 6.03 4,28 7.33
(f) Gratuity (refer note 43) 5.74 4.62 4.81
Total 1,027.51 865.82 1,068.58
Note No. 32 Finance costs
: - Year ended Year ended Year ended
aactlats Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31, 2020
(a) Interest on borrowings 190.33 181.09 177.01
(b) Interest on others 8.09 22.42 28.81
(c) Interest on lease rental discounting (refer note 36) 76.34 64.34 64.95
Other Borrowing Costs
(d) Foreign Exchange gain/(loss), net * (0.33) 0.53 (1.49)
(e) Processing Charges 11.95 6.05 4,35
Total 286.39 274.43 273.63

*Forex Gain / (Loss) is arrived by year-ending valuation of advances made in foreign currency as per Ind AS 21

Note No. 33 Depreciation and amortization expense

£33 Year ended Year ended Year ended
rcaars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020
(nz)té}ggmrecmtlon of Property, Plant and Equipment (refer 169.07 164.81 135.67
(b) Amortisation of Intangible Assets (refer note 4) 21.49 21.81 22.24
(c) Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5) 117.60 107.95 102.39
Total 308.16 294.57 260.29
Note No. 34 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended Year ended
| Particulars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31, 2020
(a) Rent (refer note 36) 216.09 138.38 190.65
(b) Insurance 12.73 14.10 13.74
(c) Professional Charges 87.80 37.50 51.50
(d) Facility maitenance expenses 447.61 364.14 399.50
(e) Business promotion expenses 567.31 172.76 389.36
(f) Other expenses 158.20 86.13 133.65
(g) Audit Fee
-for audit 1.88 0.23 0.08
-for tax audit 0.63 0.08 0.03
(h) CSR Expenditure (refer note below) 13.35 1.30 10.78
Total 1,505.60 814.61 1,189.29
*Disclosures in relation to corporate social responsibility expenditure
Pa fticulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act ZAan] s 7.93 8.91:
Amount spent during the year on b -
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset . -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 13.35 1.30
Amount unspent - -7.62




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Note No. 35
Earnings per equity share
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020

Profit after tax 576.87 51.31 420.96
Add / Less: Dividend tax - - -
Profit after tax attributable for equity share 576.87 51.31 420.96
Number of equity shares (nos.) 2,40,64,588 2,40,64,588 2,34,54,588
Weighted average number of equity shares
(nos.) - Share split done on May 18, 2022 12,03,22,940 11,80,31,160 11,72,72,940
Face value of equity share (in INR rupees) INR 2.00 INR 2.00 INR 2.00
Earnings per share (in INR rupees)

Basic 4.79 0.43 3.59

Diluted 4,79 0.43 3.59
Note No. 36

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being 01-Apr-2019. Ind AS 116 replaces
Ind AS 17 — Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The Company has used simplified transition approach under Ind

AS 116.

a) Right-of-use assets

: As at As at As at As at
4 pamcuiats Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro01,2019
Opening Balance 566.79 674.74 - -
Add: Transition to Ind AS 116 . - 613.74 -
Add: Addition during the year 334.86 = 163.39 =
Less: Impact on lease termination - - - -
Less: Impact on lease modification - - - -
Less: Amortised during the year (117.60) (107.95) (102.39) -
Total 784.05 566.79 674.74 -
(b) Lease liabilities
_ il = As at As at As at As at
4 gnmarticulars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro1,2019
Opening Balance 620.62 680.46 - -
Additions 323.08 = 732.31 =
Deletions % B - -
Interest 76.34 64.34 64.95 z
Lease payments (153.65) (124.17) (116.80) -
Closing balance 866.39 620.62 680.46 -
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases
' Pacticilars | Year ended Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
= S 117.60 107.95 10239 | T
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 76.34 64.34 64.95
(refer note 32)
Expense relating to short-term leases (refer 138.38 190.65

note 34)

216,09 | =

,/




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)
(i) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities excluding interest thereon on an undiscounted basis

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

: Particulars Less than 1year| 1-5years Mor;:;l::n 2 Total
Balance as at
April 01, 2019 = 624.02 958.09 1,582.11
March 31, 2020 124.17 661.75 796.18 1,582.11
March 31, 2021 153.65 666.20 638.09 1,457.94
March 31, 2022 175.91 611.82 516.56 1,304.28

(iii) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the company. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the company’s operations. The majority
of termination options held are exercisable only by the company and not by the respective lessor. In case the company
wishes to extend the lease, the same can be done on mutually agreeable basis with the lessor.

Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Also the company has used the discouting rate as 10% (the borrowing rate from the banks) for the purpose of arriving at
present value.

For leases of retail stores, the following factors are normally the most relevant
(a) If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the company is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

(b) Most extension options in retail leases have been included in the lease liability, because the company only has the right to
extend the lease (only with the approval of the lessor) and has incurred lease hold improvements in them.

(c) The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

(d) If there are significant penalty payments to terminate (or not extend), the company is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

(iv) The company is operating through 46 showrooms spread across the southern part of India and on evaluation of rental
agreements of these 46 showrooms, 30 showrooms have come under the purview of Ind AS 116 and impact of the same has
been provided in the special purpose financials (refer note 5). As per the terms and conditions stipulated in the lease
deeds/agreements of the remaining 16 showrooms, the termination option is available with both lessor and lessee leading to
the same being treated as short term and the impact appears in the rental expenses (refer note 34).

Note No. 37
Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at As at
s Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 Apr 01, 2019
Income Tax
AY 2009-10 0.58 - - -
AY 2010-11 0.15 - - -
AY 2011-12 0.79 - - -
AY 2012-13 - 1.46 1.46 1.46
AY 2016-17 8.86 8.46 8.46 8.46
10.38 | 9.92 9.92 9.92

The company has filed Rectification u/s 154 in relation to thie? a

bove.,,




Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

2. The Municipal authorities have levied a penalty amounting to ¥ 4.40 million for violation of the Municipal Act (GHMC Act)
by erecting advertisements display for the entire building without the written permission of the competent authority. Against
the demand, the company paid an amount of ¥ 0.6 millions. Writ petition was preferred before the Hon'ble High court of
Telangana at Hyderabad seeking stay over recovery of balance penalty amount of ¥3.80 millions. The Hon'ble High Court
vide its order dated January 31, 2022 stayed the proceedings subject to payment of 40% of the balance amount demanded
in the challans within a period of 4 weeks. Pursuant to it, the company has paid an amount of %1.52 million within the

stipulated time. The matter is pending before Hon'ble High court and the balance amount is 2.28 millions.

(b) Commitments
fiiiee As at As at As at As at
s . Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apr01,2019
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to
be executed on capital account (net of = 80.00 - 585.87
capital advances)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to
be executed on account of other purchase = =
commitments
Net Capital Commitments = 80.00 = 585.87
Total (a) + (b) - 80.00 - 585.87
Note No. 38 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
: S As at As at As at As at
Al E Mar31, 2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Aproi,2019
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered
good
Less than 6 Months 15.94 22.56 16.77 23.66
6 Months - 1 Year 2.98 = - -
1-2 Years - - - -
2-3 Years C - = -
More than 3 Years = - - -
Total 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
Note No. 39 Trade payables Ageing Schedule
A : : As at As at As at As at
ecliarsy Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020 | Apro0i,2019
(i) MSME
(i) Others
Less than 1 year 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
1-2 years = - - -
2-3 years = = - -
More than 3 years - - - -
Total 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
Note No. 40 CWIP ageing schedule
. Particulars As at As at As at As at

~ Mar 31, 2022

Mar 31, 2021

Mar 31, 2020

Apr 01, 2019

Projects in progress

Less than 1 year - 21.19 - -
1-2 years g - - -
2-3 years - - = -
More than 3 years - -
Total - | ~TAsSSpN_ -
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Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 42

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

Reconciliation between the income tax expense and amounts computed by applying the
Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

; Year ended Year ended Year ended
Rarnictlars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31,2020
Profit before tax-A 772.86 73.07 533.77
Tax rate - B 25.17% 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense - A*B 194.51 18.39 134.34
Tax effect of depreciation in determining taxable profit (7.99) (14.21) (32.09)
Tax effect of expenses other than depreciation that are not
deductible in determining taxable profit 4673 L 008
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to prior 0.34 0.01 )
years . K
Effect of Deferred Tax (refer note 20) (17.66) 2.95 (9.52)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 195.99 21.76 112.81

Note No. 43
Employee benefits

(a) Salaries and Wages

Compensatory absence which accrue to the employees which are expected to be availed or encashed within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are short-term in nature. These compensatory
absences require measurement on an actual basis and not on actuarial basis.

As per the leave policy of the company, the compensatory absences are paid within the next month from the date they are
due and there is no accrual benefit that needs to be accounted as per Ind AS 19. They are processed along with monthly
payroll.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident and pension fund contributions, which is a defined contribution plan, for qualifying
employees. Additionally, the Company also provides, for covered employees, health insurance through the Employee State
Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the
Schemes. Expenses recognized against defined contribution plans:

Particulars " Year ended Year ended Year ended
e g i Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Contribution to Provident Fund & ESI 6.03 4,28 7.33

(c) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable
to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable
irrespective of vesting. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and paid
service cost, were measured using the projected unit cost credit method. The company has obtained actuarial report from
‘Mr. 1. Sambasiva Rao (Membership No. 158 of Fellow of Institute of Actuaries of India) under Ind AS 19 for March 31, 2022
vide report dated April 13, 2022 and for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 as a single.report vide report dated November
18, 2021. \
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Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

(d) Other disclosures of defined benefit plans as required under Ind AS—19 are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Service Cost 4.24 3.24 3.59
Interest Cost 1.50 1.39 1.22
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of 5.74 4.62 481
profit or loss - (A)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan obligations 0.22 (3.39) (0.23)
Difference between actual return and interest income on plan ) _ )
assets - (gain) /loss
Cornponents_ of _deﬁned benefit costs recognised in other 0.22 (3.39) (0.23)
comprehensive income - (B)
Total (A+B) 5.96 1.24 4.58
(e) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect
of defined benefit plan is as follows:
Particulars Aoat Asat Asiat
' Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation 27.71 21.75 20.51
Less: Fair value of plan assets & = =
Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 27.71 21.75 20.51
Current portion of the above (refer note 25) 2.49 1.89 1.77
Non-current portion of the above (refer note 19) 25.22 19.86 18.74
(f) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
- ¢ .~ Asat As at As at
e Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar 31,2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of thd 21.75 20.51 15.94
Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss
Service cost 4,24 3.24 3.59
Interest cost 1.50 1.39 1.22
Expenses Recognised in statement of OCI
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.22 (3.39) (0.23)
Benefits paid by the company
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of year 27.71 21.75 20.51
(g) Sensitivity analysis
T Pt Year ended Year ended Year ended :
. Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of year 27.71 21.75 20.51
Impact of the change in the discount rate
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 25.58 20.03 18.83
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 30.17 23.73 22.46
Impact of the change in the withdrawal rate
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 28.35 22.17 20.89
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 26.98 21.27 20.08
Impact of the change in the salary
Impact due to increase of 1.00% 29.88 23.54 22.27
Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 25.82 20.16 18.95




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

(h) Maturity profile - Expected Future_Cash flows (Undiscounted)

. As at As at As at
. parictlars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31, 2020
0 to 1 year 2.49 1.89 1.77
1 to 2 year 2.19 1.48 1.34
2 to 3 year 2.09 1.73 141
3 to 4 year 2,13 1.65 1.62
4to 5 year 2.11 1.59 1.58
5 year onwards 14.62 12.04 10.29
(i) Actuarial assumptions
3 . Year ended Year ended Year ended
- Eaaciars Mar 31,2022 | Mar31,2021 | Mar31, 2020
Discount rate 7.34% 6.92% 6.76%
Salary escalation 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Method used

(j) The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020, which would impact Employees Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, etc. The effective date from which the
changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the final rules are yet to be framed. The impact of the changes, will be
assessed and recognized post notification of the relevant provision and related rules are published.

Note No. 44
Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of retail trade through retail and departmental stores facilities, which in
the terms of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', constitutes a single reporting business segment.

There are no material individual markets outside India and hence the same is not disclosed for geographical segments for
the segment revenues or results or assets. During the year ended 31 March 2022, 2021 and 2020, the revenue from
transactions with a single external customer did not amount to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenues from the
external customers.




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Note No. 45
Related Party Disclosures

a) List of related parties

I:: Nature of relationship Name of the related party
1 |Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (a) Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi

(b) Kalyana Srinivas Annam

(c) Doondeswara Kanaka Durga Rao Chalavadi
(d) Rama Krishna Oruganti - CFO Till March 01, 2022
(e) Jonnada Vaghira Kumari

(f) Alla Lakshmi Sowjanya

(g) Koti Bhaskara Teja Matte

(h) Naveen Nandigam

(i) Sirisha Chintapalli

(j) Laxminivas Jaju

(k) Konduri V L N Sarma - CFO From March 01, 2022
2 |Relative of KMP (a) Jhansi Rani Chalavadi '

(b) Venkata Rajesh Annam

(c) Sowjanya Annam

(d) Suchitra Annam

(e) Mohana Durga Rao Chalavadi

(f) Supriya Padarthy

(g) Bhavani Annam

(h) Lavanya Mankal

(i) Krishna Murty Chalavadi

(j) Devamani Venkata Kanaka Hanisha Chalavadi
__|(k) Balaji Bharadwaj Rachamadugu

3 |Enterprises over which director is'_h-a\;in.g- o (a) Sai Readymades
significant influence (b) Sai Retail India Limited
(c) SSS Marketing

(d) Sai Swarnamandir Jewellers Pvt Ltd
(e) Sumaja Creations

(f) K Factory

(g) Kalamandir Foundation

(h) Kalamandir International Pvt Ltd

(i) Varamahalakshmi Holdings Pvt Ltd.
(3) Soul of Pluto Tech LLP




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

(b) Transactions with related parties are set out in the table below
For the period | For the period | For the period

Particulars ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31,
2022 2021 2020
(i) Purchases
(a) Sai Retail India Limited 8,416.90 4,421.87 8,689.48
(ii) Rent (Expense)
(a) Sai Retail India Limited 3.16 2.45 1.10
(b) Varamahalakshmi Holdings Pvt Ltd. 1.02 1.02 1.02
(c) Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 1.85 0.59 0.72
(d) Jhansi Rani Chalavadi 0.50 0.34 0.48
(iii) Other Income - Rent
(a) Sai Retail India Limited 0.12 0.12 0.12
(b) Soul of Pluto Tech LLP 1.31 1.20 1.40
(iv) Salary / Remuneration
(a) Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi 24.37 8.81 11.94
(b) Jhansi Rani Chalavadi 5.64 2.64 3.58
(c) Kalyana Srinivas Annam 10.49 4.40 5.97
(d) Doondeswara Kanaka Durga Rao Chalavad 3.60 2.97 3.88
(e) Venkata Rajesh Annam 5.43 2.87 3.88
(f) Sowjanya Annam 1.49 0.79 1.07
(g) Suchitra Annam 1.39 0.79 1.07
(h) Mohana Durga Rao Chalavadi 3.80 2.87 3.88
(i) Supriya Padarthy 1.00 0.82 1.07
() Bhavani Annam 1.38 0.79 1.07
(k)Lavanya Mankal 1.05 0.79 1.07
(1) Devamani Venkata Kanaka Durga Hanisha 1.17 1.09 1.19
(m) Balaji Bharadwaj Rachamadugu 3.63 217 2.39
(n) Rama Krishna Oruganti 0.69 0.36 0.88
(o) Konduri V L N Sarma 0.45 =
(p) Koti Bhaskara Teja Matte 0.82 0.48 0.71
(q) Annam Subhash 1.48 % =
(v) Rent expenses - Commission
(a) SSS Marketing 2.00 1.80 1.80
(vi) Business Promotion Expenses -
Advertisement
(a) Sumaija Creations 103.48 21.46 207.02

(vii) Professional charges - Software
Consultation / Maintenance (Exp)

(a) Soul of Pluto Tech LLP 33.00 22.20 22.20
(viii) Other Expenses - Sitting fees

(a) Naveen Nandigam 0.06 0.06 0.06

(b) Sirisha Chintapalli 0.06 0.06 0.06

(c) Laxminivas Jaju 0.06 0.06 0.06
(ix) CSR Expenditure

(a) Kalamandir Foundation 8.18 0.68 10.08

(x) Other Income
Sumaja Creations
Soul of Pluto Tech LLP

(xi) Repayment of loan and deposit
(a) Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi
(b) Krishna Murthy Chalavadi




Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information

(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

c. Related party balances: (Payable)/Receivable

L \ As at As at As at As at
Earticuiars ' Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31,2021 | Mar 31,2020 | Apr 01, 2019
(a) Sai Retail India Limited
- Trade Payables (1,276.43) (1,061.53) = -
- Other Non Current Financial Assets 0.90 0.90 = -
- Advance to Suppliers - - = 22.35
(1,275.53) (1,060.63) 22.35
(b) SSS Marketing
- Other Current Financial Liabilities (0.82) (0.45) (0.08) 0.37
- Other Non Current Financial Assets 1.20 1.20 1.20 1.20
0.38 0.75 1.12 1.57
aja Creations - i ial
ﬁ:g bSill;ItTesl tions - Other Current Financia (40.23) (6.30) (123.38) (117.58)
(d) K Factory - Trade Payables - (0.48) (0.48) (0.48)
(e) Soul of Pluto Tech LLP
- Other Current Financial Liabilities (5.08) 8.27 3.99 (2.68)
- Other Non Current Financial Liabilities (0.60) (0.60) (0.60) =
(5.68) 7.67 3.39 (2.68)
(M Varam.ahala‘kshrlni !-1.o-ldings Pvt Ltd. - Other 0.01 0.64 0.72) (1.01)
Current Financial Liabilities
(g) Naga Kanaka Durga Prasad Chalavadi
- Other Current Financial Liabilities (3.53) (1.47) (1.76) (2.32)
- Other Non Current Financial Assets 1.10 0.60 0.36 0.36
- Financial Liabilities Current Borrowings - (1.87) (21.87) (21.87)
(2.43) (2.74) (23.27) (23.84)
(h) Jhansi Rani Chalavadi
- Other Current Financial Liabilities (0.58) (0.23) (0.14) (0.27)
- Other Non Current Financial Assets 0.24 0.24 0.24 0.24
(0.34) 0.01 0.10 (0.03)
Other Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Kalyana Srinivas Annam (1.17) (0.30) (0.32) (0.33)
(j) Doondeswara Kanaka Durga Rao Chalavadi (0.26) (0.24) (0.20) (0.32)
(k) Annam Subhash (0.61) - A -
(I) Venkata Rajesh Annam (0.40) (0.20) (0.22) (0.25)
(m) Sowjanya Annam (0.27) (0.06) (0.07) (0.08)
(n) Suchitra Annam (0.14) (0.07) (0.07) (0.09)
(o) Mohana Durga Rao Chalavadi (0.23) (0.20) (0.25) (0.28)
(p) Supriya Padarthy (0.09) (0.09) (0.08) (0.09)
(q) Bhavani Annam (0.13) (0.08) (0.07) (0.08)
(r) Lavanya Mankal (0.12) (0.13) (0.12) (0.13)
(s) Krishna Murty Chalavadi - (0.01) (0.01) (0.01)
(t) Devamani Venkata Kanaka Durga Hanisha C (0.09) (0.10) (0.09) (0.09)
(u) Balaji Bharadwaj Rachamadugu (0.37) (0.11) (0.19) (0.16)
(v) Ramakrishna Oruganti (0.03) (0.06) (0.04) (0.07)
(w) Konduri V L N Sarma (0.31) o ¥ -
(x) Koti Bhaskara Teja Matte (0.07) (0.06) (0.05) (0.07)
(y) Naveen Nandigam - (0.06) (0.05 (0.11)
() Sirisha Chintapalli T T :ASSOC, -
(aa) Laxminivas Jaju ANE
(ab) Jinesh Kumar Sankhala (0.14)
(ac) Vanitha Nagulavari PERARAD jkﬂ.ll)
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(a)

()

Note No. 46
Capital and Financial risk management objectives and policies

Risk management framework

Company is being driven by the market forces, its businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties
including financial risks. The Company’s documented risk management policies act as an effective tool in

mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is exposed to, in the course of their daily
operations.

The risk management policies cover areas around all identified business risks including commodity price risk,
foreign exchange risk etc., Risks are identified through a formal risk management programme with active
involvement of senior management personnel and business managers. The Company has in place risk

management processes in line with the Company’s policy. Each significant risk has an owner, who
coordinates the risk management process.

The risk management framework aims to:

 Better understand our risk profile;

* Understand and better manage the uncertainties which impact our performance;

« Contribute to safeguarding Company value and interest of various stakeholders;

« Ensure that sound business opportunities are identified and pursued without exposing the business to an
unacceptable level of risk;

e Improve compliance with good corporate governance guidelines and practices as well as laws &
regulations; and

» Improve financial returns

Treasury management

The Company's treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the
Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These
risks include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Treasury management focuses on capital protection, liquidity maintenance and yield maximization. The
treasury operates as per the delegation of authority from the Board. Day-to-day treasury operations are
managed by Company’s finance team. Long-term fund raising including strategic treasury initiatives are

handled by a Treasury team. The Company has a strong system of internal control which enables effective
monitoring of adherence to Company’s policies.

Financial risk

The Company’s Board approved financial risk policies comprise liquidity, currency, interest rate and
counterparty risk. The Company does not engage in speculative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk
and optimize interest through proven financial instruments,

Liquidity

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment
programmes mainly in growth projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flows from the current
operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments provide
liquidity both in the short-term as well as in the long-term.

The Company has been rated by Care Ratings Ltd (CARE) for its banking facilities in line norms.

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and
strengthening balance sheet. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the
remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below.
The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company. !
The Company has hypothecated its trade receivables, mventory,—adgances and other curreptf;
to fulfil the collateral requirements for the financial facm es in place ’]'here are no othe<signifi cant te
and conditions associated with the use of collateral. ¥q
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(i)

(iif)

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of

financial liabilities at the reportina date
Particulars Carrying value D OISt
year year

Mar 31, 2022

Lease liabilities 866.39 175.91 690.48
Borrowings 486.60 - 486.60
Other financial non-current liabilities 11.15 - 11.15
Borrowings 2,118.29 2,118.29 -
Trade payables 1,291.18 1,291.18 -
Other financial liabilities 253.07 253.07 =
Total 5,026.67 3,838.44 1,188.23
Mar 31, 2021

Lease liabilities 620.62 153.65 466.97
Borrowings 573.56 - 573.56
Other financial non-current liabilities 5.51 - 5.51
Borrowings 1,598.69 1,598.69 -
Trade payables 1,075.99 1,075.99 -
Other financial liabilities 125.59 125.59 -
Total 3,999.96 2,953.92 1,046.04
Mar 31, 2020

Lease liabilities 680.46 124.17 556.28
Borrowings 345.84 345.84
Other financial non-current liabilities 5.05 5.05
Borrowings 1,301.12 1,301.12 =
Trade payables 1,700.62 1,700.62 -
Other financial liabilities 332.31 332.31 -
Total 4,365.39 3,458.22 907.17 |
As as Apr 01, 2019

Lease liabilities - = =
Borrowings 403.61 403.61
Other financial non-current liabilities 1.31 1.31
Borrowings 1,312.34 1,312.34 -
Trade payables 1,419.95 1,419.95 =
Other financial liabilities 272.23 272.23 -
Total 3,409.45 3,004.53 404.92

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the other payables. The risks primarily relate
to fluctuations in US Dollar, GBP against the functional currencies of the Company. The Company’s
exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. The Company evaluates the
impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The carrying amount of trade receivables, advances, deposits, cash
and bank balances, bank deposits and interest receivable on deposits represents company’s
maximum exposure to the credit risk.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with
Companys policy. No other financial asset carry a 5|gn|ﬁcant exposure with respect the credit
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(b) Capital management and Gearing Ratio
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the company’s
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by total capital. The
Company includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings.

g As at As at As at As at
alUCiEs Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Borrowings

Non current 486.60 573.56 345.84 403.61

Current 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34
Debt 2,604.89 2,172.24 1,646.96 1,715.95

Equity share capital 240.65 240.65 234.55 234.55

Other equity 2,765.96 2,189.26 2,080.51 1,659.37
Total capital 3,006.61 2,429.90 2,315.05 1,893.92
Gearing ratio in (Capital/Debt) 1.15 1.12 1.41 1.10
Note No. 47

Financial instrument and risk management

(a) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying value of the financial instruments by categories

: Carrying Value
Particulars . Asat As at . Asat As at
_ _ ; Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Other financial non-current assets 238.02 233.91 224.24 188.37
Trade receivables 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
Cash and cash equivalents 86.24 43.34 180.90 250.03
Bank balgnoes other than cash and 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
cash equivalents
Loans 162.02 55.03 44,96 29.39
Other financial assets 3.26 1.12 0.16 3.46
Total 892.46 541.56 514.44 515.69
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 866.39 620.62 680.46 -
Borrowings 486.60 573.56 345.84 403.61
Other financial non-current liabilities 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
Borrowings 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34
Trade payables 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
Other financial liabilities 253.07 125.59 332.31 272.23
Total 5,026.67 3,999.96 4,365.39 3,409.45
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0

(i)

(iii)

Fair Value

Particulars As at As at As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Other financial non-current assets 238.02 233.91 224.24 188.37
Trade receivables 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
Cash and cash equivalents 86.24 143.34 180.90 250.03
Bank balelmces other than cash and 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
cash equivalents
Loans 162.02 55.03 44.96 29.39
Other financial assets 3.26 1.12 0.16 3.46
Total 892.46 541.56 514.44 515.69
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 866.39 620.62 680.46 =
Borrowings 486.60 573.56 345.84 403.61
Other financial non-current liabilities 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
Borrowings 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34
Trade payables 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
Other financial liabilities 253.07 125.59 332.31 272,23
Total 5,026.67 3,999.96 4,365.39 3,409.45

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as borrowings, trade payable, and other current
liabilities, loans, trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents at carrying value because their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of the fair values
due to their short term nature.

Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on
parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter party.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data.
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Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments are given below

Particilars As at As at As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021 | Mar 31, 2020 | Apr 01, 2019
Level 3
Financial Assets, measured at
Amortised Cost
Other financial non-current assets 238.02 233.91 224,24 188.37
Trade receivables 18.92 22.56 16.77 23.66
Cash and cash equivalents 86.24 43.34 180.90 250.03
Bank bale_mces other than cash and 383.99 185.60 47.41 20.78
cash equivalents
Loans 162.02 55.03 44.96 29.39
Other financial assets 3.26 1.12 0.16 3.46
Total 892.46 541.56 514.44 515.69
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 866.39 620.62 680.46 =
Borrowings 486.60 573.56 345,84 403.61
Other financial non-current liabilities 11.15 5.51 5.05 1.31
Borrowings 2,118.29 1,598.69 1,301.12 1,312.34
Trade payables 1,291.18 1,075.99 1,700.62 1,419.95
Other financial liabilities 253.07 125.59 332.31 272.23
Total 5,026.67 3,999.96 4,365.39 3,409.45
Note No. 48
Key Ratios
~ Particulars st Asat Variance
: Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021
a) Current Ratio: 1.38 1.36 0.90%
Current Assets 5,607.54 4,093.36
Current Liabilities 4,077.10 3,002.94
b) Debt Equity: 0.87 0.89 -3.08%
Total Debt (Ic_Jng-term and short-term 2,604.89 2,172.24
interest bearing)
Shareholder’s Equity 3,006.61 2,429.90
c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio: 3.29 2,17 51.33%
Earnings available for Debt Service 1,413.14 637.34
Debt Service 429.40 293.08 /
d) Return on Equity: 21.22% 2.16% 881.20% \
Net Profits after taxes 576.87 51.31 M
Average Shareholder’s Equity 2,718.25 2,372.48
e) Inventory Turnover Ratio: 2.68 1.83 46.01%
Total Sales 11,293.23 6,772.48
Average Inventory 4,217.00 3,692.41
f) Trade Receivables Turnover: 544.48 344.36 58.11%
Total Sales 11,293.23 6,772.48
Average Accounts Receivable 20.74 19.67
g) Trade Payables Turnover: 7.16 3.21 123.23%
Total Purchases 8,472.12 4,451.60
Average Trades Payable 1,183.58 1,388.30
h) Net Capital Turnover: 8.62 7.92 8.76%
Total Sales 11,293.23 6,772.48
Average Working Capital 1,310.43 854.71
i) Net Profit Ratio: 5.11% 0.76% 574.18%
Net Profit 576.87 51.31
Total Sales 11,293.23 6,772.48




Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Particulars asat f5 at Variance

Mar 31, 2022 | Mar 31, 2021

j) Return on Capital Employed: 21.71% 8.51% 155.09%
Earning before interest and taxes 1,059.25 347.51
Capital Employed 4,879.05 4,083.13

k) Return on Investment* NA NA NA
Net Profit NA NA
Shareholder’s Equity NA NA

* There are no investments made by the company, as such the ratio is not applicable.

The following Ratios had variance of 25%;

Particulars Remarks

Movement in ratio is due to improvement in
EBIDTA

Increase in ratio as the profit earned by the
company improved during the year.

Increase in ratio due to faster churning of
inventory.
Increase in ratio because of increase in Turnover
of the company
Increase in ratio due to faster churning of
sl he profi d by th

; ncrease in ratio as the profit earned by the
Net Profit Ratio company improved during the year.
Increase in ratio as the profit earned by the
company improved during the year.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Return on Equity

Inventory Turnover Ratio

Trade Receivables Turnover

Trade Payables Turnover

Return on Capital Employed

Note: With the declaration of the COVID-19 as a pandemic in mid-March 2020, the performance of the
company was affected due to store closures consequent upon declaration of national lockdown by the
Government. This has resulted in the sales and profit before tax being lower in the FY 2020-21. However, the

performance of the company improved in the year FY 2021-22 which in turn impacted the respective ratios
having a variance of more than 25%.

Note No. 49

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-I9:
The retail industry as a whole has been adversely impacted by the spread of COVID-19. The
operations of the company were impacted to certain extent owing to the complete Lock down imposed from
March 22, 2020. In this crisis, our priorities are to protect the employees and their families from COVID-19,
besides our customers visiting our stores and the society associated with it. The company has begun
restoration of store operations from last week of May-20 and has been opening the stores, as permitted by
the Government and Local/Regulatory authorities, with controlled movement, maintaining social distancing,
taking appropriate hygiene measures and following the directions of regulatory authorities. The Company
believes that the pandemic is not likely to impact the recoverability of the carrying value of its assets. The
Company is closely monitoring the developments operations and is actively working to minimize the: |rnpact
of this unprecedented situation. As the situation is continuously evolving, the eventual |mpact my be
different from the estimates made as of the date of the balance sheet. Qe

Note No. 50

Fraud by the employee of the company :

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the management of the Company has noticed that one of the
exemployees in the Secunty team had embezzled funds amounting to %{} 895 n‘II"IOI'IS in FY 2020- 21 Full

safeguarding the premises.

Subsequently, the management has initiated various actions to improve
appointment and rotation of duties etc.
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Note No. 51
First Time Adoption of Ind AS

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 and in the preparation of opening Ind AS balance sheet at
April 1, 2019 by adoptiong April 1, 2019 as transition date. In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet,
the company has adjusted the amounts reported in financial statements prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules ,2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act ("Previous Indian GAAP") and an explanation of how the transition from
Previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position, financial performance is
presented in the form of reconciliations below.

Exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

A

Ind AS optional exemptions

(i) Deemed cost for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property,
plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS,
measured as per the Previous Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after
making necessary adjustments for decommissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible
assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets at their Previous Indian GAAP carrying value.

Ind AS Mandatory Exceptions

(i) Estimates : An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with Previous Indian GAAP (after

adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2019 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in
conformity with Previous Indian GAAP.

(ii) Classification and measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assesé classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly, classification and

measurement of the financial assets has been based on the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.

(iii) Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly the Company has applied the
de-recognition requirements for financial assets and financial liabilities in Ind AS 109 prospectively for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.
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C Transition to Ind AS

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the
transition from Previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:

(a) The reconciliation of net profit reported in accordance with Indian GAAP to total comprehensive
Income in accordance with Ind AS is given below:-
Patticulars As at As at As at
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Net Profit for the period under previous p—
Indian GAAP 602.95 86.32 455.86
(a) Net impact of Ind AS Transition (26.25) (32.47) (34.72)
Net Profit for the period as per restated
finandals 576.71 53.85 421.14
(b) Reconciliation of other equity between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Pattculare _ As_at As at As at
_ Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020 |
Other Equity as per previous Indian GAAP 2,859.39 2,256.44 2,115.23
(a) Net impact of Ind AS 116 (93.43) (67.19) (34.72)
2,765.96 2,189.26 2,080.51

-




Note No. 52

Reconciliation of quarterly bank returns

Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited

: Amount as per Amount as Amount of
Name of Bank Particulars Quarter D00Ks OF teportediin difference
Accounts quarterly returns
: ; Inventories June-21 3,810.70 3,810.70 g
Working Capital 1 B TTA S -
ke T Receivables June-21 36.80 36.80 :
" |Trade Payables June-21 1,307.03 1,307.03 | =
. . Inventories September21 | 4,304.38 4,304.38 -
I ! -
t‘;‘:\r;;':g*cap'ta Receivables September-21 49.95 49.95 | =
_____|Trade Payables September-21 1,492.61 1,492.61 =
. , Inventories December-21 ~4,740.07 4,740.07 -
Work t GRS
Le%;:g*cap'w Receivables December-21 | 16.95 16.95 "
Trade Payables December-21 1,728.48 1,728.48 -
; i Inventories March-22 4,764.32 4,764.32 -
m"{;‘;’:g*cap'ta' Receivables™ March-22 18.92 18.94 -0.02
Trade Payables March-22 1,291.18 1,291.18 -

*SBI, Canara Bank, HDFC Bank and IDBI Bank Limited, are represented as Working Capital Lenders.
~Due to accounting of TDS Receivable from debtors

Reason for difference

The Bank returns were prepared and file before the completion of all financial statement closure activities including IND
AS related adjustment/reclassification, as applicable, which led to these differences between the final books of
accounts and the bank return which were based on provisional books of accounts.

Note No. 53
(a) Title deeds of immovable properties
Title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(b) Valuation of Property Plant & Equipment, intangible asset
The Company has not revalued its fixed assets.

(c) Loans or advances to specified persons
No loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPS and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or

(d) Details of benami property held

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company any Benami property.

(e) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or
statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(f) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(g) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(h) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company do not have pending registration or satlsfactron of charge to be registered with RO
statutory time period.

\{
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Sai Silks (Kalamandir) Limited
Notes to financial information
(All amounts are in INR million, except otherwise stated)

(i) Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017
is not applicable to the company.

(j) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or
previous financial year.

(k) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries);

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(1) Undisclosed income

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(m) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

(n) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the Company from the Banks and Financial Institutions have been applied for the purposes
for which such loans were taken.

For and on behalf of the board

>

Annﬁza\lyan Srinivas

Whole Time Director
DIN : 02428313

As per our audit report of even date
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Place: Hyderabad
Date: 28th May, 2022

M K Bhaskara Teja
Company Secretary
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Chief Financial Officer .~




